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THE STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT
THE UNIVERSITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

 
 

In the Matter of
NEW YORK CITY DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

v.
PHILIP NOBILE

Section 3020-a Education Law Proceeding (File #29,2 58)
 

 
 

DATE:              October 7, 2016
 

TIME:              10:00 a.m. to 2:50 p.m.
 

LOCATION:          NYC Department of Education
Office of Legal Services
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BEFORE:            MARY J. O'CONNELL, ESQ.

HEARING OFFICER
 

APPEARANCES:   FOR THE COMPLAINANT:
JORDANA SHENKMAN, ESQ., of Counsel
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Office of Legal Services
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New York, NY  10007
Telephone:  (212) 374-6741
jshenkman@schools.nyc.gov

 
FOR THE RESPONDENT:

CHRIS CALLAGY, ESQ., of Counsel
Office of Richard E. Casagrande
52 Broadway, 9th Floor
New York, New York 10004
Telephone: (212) 533-6300
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3
1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2                         (The hearing commenced at 10:00 a.m.)
3                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Good morning.
4               We're here in the matter of New York City
5               Department of Education and Philip Nobile.  Did
6               I pronounce that correctly, sir?
7                         MR. PHILIP NOBILE:  Almost.
8                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.
9                         MR. NOBILE:  Nobile.

10                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Nobile, okay.
11               State Education Department File Number 29,258.
12               My name is Mary O'Connell, the hearing officer
13               assigned to this matter.  Today is Friday,
14               October 7th, 2016.  Counsel, may I have your
15               appearances, please?
16                         MS. JORDANA SHENKMAN:  Jordana
17               Shenkman for the Department of Education.
18                         MR. CHRIS CALLAGY:  Chris Callagy for
19               the Respondent and the general counsel in our
20               office who is Richard E. Casagrande.
21                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I note,
22               obviously, for the record that the Respondent is
23               present.  At this time, we are going to go off
24               the record to attend to a few administrative
25               matter.

4
1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2                         [OFF THE RECORD, Getting copies]
3                         [ON THE RECORD, Getting copies, 10:25
4               a.m.]
5                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Back on the
6               record in this pre-hearing conference.  I note
7               that this matter has been assigned another
8               hearing officer and it's the first I'm seeing of
9               a motion to dismiss and the Respondent's demand

10               for a bill of particulars.  At this point, why
11               don't I listen to your argument on the motion to
12               dismiss and then we'll kind of take it from
13               there.
14                         So, first in support of the motion?
15                         MR. CALLAGY:  Well--good morning,
16               everybody.  Madam Hearing Officer, it is, I
17               think, pretty clearly demonstrated by the number
18               of decisions, one of which is cited in our brief
19               motion and that is that these proceedings are
20               not designed to or intended to determine whether
21               or not criminal conduct had been committed.  We
22               have not taken a position nor do we today that
23               in any way the DOE is prohibited from going
24               after underlying conduct that may have formed a
25               basis for some other allegation or arrest or

5
1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2               conviction under some penal statute.
3                         But the underlying conduct would be
4               the issue.  It is our position that, you know,
5               under 3020-a, hearing officers simply do not
6               have the power to say yes, that would have been
7               a crime.  They just don't have the authority to
8               do so.  That belongs to other parties.
9               Obviously, it's about misconduct.  And that's

10               why the underlying conduct is fair game, of
11               course.
12                         But that's really the substance of why
13               part of the charges we've moved to dismiss to
14               the extent it's asking you to reach a conclusion
15               regarding whether or not conduct is criminal.
16               Obviously, there may be introduced into
17               evidence, evidence of conviction of some
18               offense, that we don't object to is piece of
19               evidence.  But the underlying conduct would
20               remain the nature of the proceeding and if not,
21               anything that goes to something conclusory
22               should be dismissed as beyond their authority.
23               So, that's simply what it is.
24                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Shenkman?
25                         MS. SHENKMAN:  I believe this notion
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6
1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2               is not really applicable to the charges that you
3               have at hand because, clearly, if you read the -
4               - [00:01], the same specifications, they don't
5               ask you to make any determination about whether
6               or not a crime was committed.  They only talk
7               about specifically, whether or not he violated
8               the regulation in C-105, which, yes, does
9               mention the word crime or violation and arrest,

10               because it's laid out in this particular
11               regulation that an employee is obligated if
12               they're arrested on a violation or a crime to
13               report that to his or her employers and also,
14               obligated to report a conviction of a crime or
15               violation.  So to that extent those words appear
16               in here, but we are not asking you to make any
17               conclusion about the Respondent committing a
18               crime.  We're only asking you to evaluate as in
19               Specification 3 the underlying conduct which
20               defense counsel, I think, can see it's fair game
21               here.  So, that's our response to that.
22                         MR. CALLAGY:  If I may say one thing
23               to Ms. Shenkman, the motion had been submitted,
24               which we're talking about now, is about the
25               preamble and then the foregoing.  There is a
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1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2               mention of criminal conduct in the preamble to
3               this specification as is there in what the
4               foregoing constitutes to the degree that that
5               means that there has to be some, I think it
6               does, judgement made by the hearing officer to
7               determine whether criminal conduct had occurred.
8               To that degree, I think those phrases should be
9               dismissed from the proceeding.

10                         Also, I think, it may not be--I don't
11               know how it could be known to the hearing
12               officer, but the one of the things which I don't
13               think is in dispute, is the nature of the
14               offense that forms, at least, part of the
15               charges was not a crime.  That's the other
16               thing.  We're not even talking about a crime.
17               We're talking about a conviction, in part, that
18               goes to harassment, but not a criminal
19               conviction.  That's all.
20                         MS. SHENKMAN:  Right.  That's correct
21               and we can get into this later if it's
22               necessary, but just to clarify what Mr. Nobile
23               was convicted was is under the New Jersey penal
24               code, so it's a little bit different than what
25               we're used in New York.  But it's more like the

8
1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2               equivalent of a violation here.  It's actually
3               in between, in New Jersey, what he was convicted
4               of is actually in between a violation and what
5               would be equivalent of a violation and a B
6               misdemeanor here.  But, yes, like a violation,
7               it's not considered a crime, it's considered a
8               criminal offense.  We will argue later how C-105
9               still contemplates the conviction of a violation

10               as it states that in C-105.
11                         But as to the point that the motion to
12               dismiss refers to the preamble or the foregoing
13               portion, in my opinion, I think that the
14               preamble and the foregoing portion is just a
15               description of what the conduct that's charged
16               may or may constitute under the education law
17               and the rule and regulations of New York State
18               and 3020-a.  When you have a set of
19               specification in front of you, you're not asked
20               to make a determination about the foregoing or
21               the preamble, you're only asked to make a
22               determination about whether or not Respondent is
23               guilty of Specification 1, 2, 3 and 4.  So I
24               still think that it shouldn't really be an issue
25               here.

9
1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2                         MR. CALLAGY:  That's a very
3               interesting point which I'd like to agree with
4               you on, but I think it's kind of favorable to
5               Respondents generally, but I don't think it's
6               true.  I think the charges, the foregoing
7               constitute, and even though we rarely dwell on
8               that, I think does have legal meaning and I
9               think does go to the range of possible penalties

10               or remedies the hearing officer can enter into
11               at the end of the case if any.
12                         So, I do think it matters, although I
13               understand your point, Ms. Shenkman, that it's
14               fundamentally it's talking the specifications.
15               I understand that, but I do worry that--I don't
16               want to waive any possible argument to say that
17               no, we're not, we shouldn't be talking about and
18               we're not, in fact, talking about, in any event,
19               criminal conduct.
20                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  What I'd
21               like to do because I just received this and I
22               want to review the specification is, at some
23               point, go off the record and let me consider
24               this, but I think I certainly can have a
25               decision for you today.
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10
1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2                         In the meantime, do we wish to go
3               through the bill of particulars just to get kind
4               of that work done.
5                         MS. SHENKMAN:  Sure.
6                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.
7                         MS. SHENKMAN:  Oh, sorry, I gave you
8               my marked copy, so here's the blank copy.
9                         MR. CALLAGY:  Let the record reflect--

10                         [Laughter]
11                         [crosstalk]
12                         MS. SHENKMAN:  So we can just go
13               through paragraph by paragraph.
14                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think that
15               makes sense if that's okay with the Respondent.
16                         MR. CALLAGY:  Yes.
17                         MS. SHENKMAN:  Starting with Paragraph
18               1, no objection other than, of course, when
19               defense asks for addresses and telephone
20               numbers, that would only be work contact
21               information.  We're not going to give out
22               personal addresses or cellphone numbers.
23                         MR. CALLAGY:  That's understood, at
24               least, for present purposes, no problem.
25                         MS. SHENKMAN:  As to Paragraph 2, no
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1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2               objection.
3                         Paragraph 3, no objection.
4                         Paragraph 4, I don't think is
5               applicable as there's no SCI or OSI
6               investigation involved here.  This is just the
7               C-105 violation which that information is sent
8               to us by OPI so there's not a traditional
9               investigation like you might have seen in some

10               of the other cases.
11                         Have you done a C-105 case before?
12                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Not in this
13               lifetime.
14                         MS. SHENKMAN:  There's no SCI or OSI
15               investigation investigated.
16                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  In a prior
17               context, I was familiar with that.
18                         MS. SHENKMAN:  Okay.  As to Paragraph
19               5, no objection.
20                         Paragraph 6, no objection.
21                         Paragraph 7, we do ask that the
22               Respondent get ahold of his own personnel file
23               and I believe that he--when I talked to the
24               secretary at the school, they said that they had
25               already provided a copy.

12
1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2                         MR. CALLAGY:  I think that's true.
3                         MS. SHENKMAN:  To the Respondent.
4                         MR. NOBILE:  They made it available
5               but because of all of the postponement and so
6               on, I haven't gone by and picked it up.  It's
7               only four blocks away from my house so I'll try
8               to do it today.
9                         MS. SHENKMAN:  So just let me know if

10               there's any problem with that.  I can make a
11               phone call on your behalf, but he should be able
12               to do that on his own.
13                         MR. NOBILE:  Thanks.
14                         MS. SHENKMAN:  Where am I?  Paragraph
15               8.  It's not applicable to this case as it does
16               not involve students.
17                         Paragraph 9, no objection other than
18               the same thing, again, no personal addresses or
19               phone numbers, just work information.
20                         MR. CALLAGY:  No objection to that.
21                         MS. SHENKMAN:  Paragraph 10, not
22               really applicable because it doesn't have to do
23               with conduct that occurred in class.  This is
24               conduct between two adults.
25                         MR. CALLAGY:  Okay.

13
1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2                         MS. SHENKMAN:  Paragraph 11, no
3               objection.
4                         And we would ask, of course, that if
5               Respondent has any exculpatory information to
6               provide to that us, to make us aware of that as
7               well as we would ask for reciprocal discovery
8               just in reasonable amount of time to look over
9               before whatever witness testifies that day.

10                         MR. CALLAGY:  Understand.  We would,
11               as you know, it's our practice to give you
12               whatever we're going to use or have relied on
13               prior to when we begin the defense.  If you rest
14               your case, we'll give you that information such
15               as I have it and I'll give it to you as I go
16               along if we acquire more of it or something
17               else.  No problem.
18                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  And I appreciate
19               the parties cooperating in fulfilling their
20               mutual discovery obligations.
21                         Okay, at this point, why don't we go
22               off the record.  Let me just review the motion
23               and we go back about that.  Is there going to
24               be--why don't we do that and then we can talk
25               about future stuff later.  Okay.
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1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2                         [OFF THE RECORD, Review documents
3                         [OFF THE RECORD, Review documents,
4               11:00 a.m.]
5                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay, back on
6               the record.  I've had an opportunity to review
7               the motion and the arguments made by both sides
8               and the motion to dismiss as well as the
9               specifications in this matter.

10                         And I find, looking particular at the
11               specifications that none of the specifications
12               request that I rule on whether or not an
13               activity was a crime.  They concern whether or
14               not the Respondent failed to present OPI a copy
15               of a criminal complaint and certificate of
16               disposition as well as several other allegations
17               which do not allege criminal conduct.
18                         So, insofar my charge is to review the
19               specifications to determine whether or not those
20               specifications have been proven and that those
21               specifications do not request that I determine
22               whether or not criminal conduct has occurred,
23               the motion is denied.
24                         I'm mindful that the Respondent has
25               pointed out that the references to criminal

 Sheet 5 

15
1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2               conduct occur in the prelude and in the
3               foregoing.  However, that, for the purposes of
4               this hearing, that is irrelevant.  My charge is
5               to determine the specifications and the
6               appropriate penalty in the event that I sustain
7               any of those specifications.
8                         So your motion and argument is noted,
9               but the motion is denied.

10                         At this point, it's my understanding,
11               Ms. Shenkman, that the Department has some
12               discovery which it can provide to the Respondent
13               per his review at this time.
14                         MS. SHENKMAN:  Yes.
15                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  And why don't we
16               go off the record to allow you to do that and
17               we'll take it up in a bit.  Thanks.
18                         [OFF THE RECORD, Review discovery,
19               11:30 a.m.]
20                         [ON THE RECORD, Review discovery,
21               12:32 p.m.]
22                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay, back on
23               the record.  Just for an update, the Department
24               has served discovery upon the Respondent and
25               there's been a settlement proposal which needs

16
1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2               to be discussed further so we will go off the
3               record to provide time to discuss that more.
4                         [OFF THE RECORD, Settlement
5               discussion, 12:34 p.m.]
6                         [ON THE RECORD, Settlement discussion,
7               2:11 p.m.]
8                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Back on the
9               record.  I understand from the parties that a

10               settlement has been reached in this matter?
11                         MS. SHENKMAN:  Yes.
12                         MR. CALLAGY:  That's correct.
13                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Sir, in
14               order--the next step in this is for me to ask
15               you a series of questions.
16                         MR. NOBILE:  Please.
17                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  So, kindly
18               listen and answer them.
19                         Have you carefully read the post-
20               charge stipulation of settlement which consists
21               of five pages?
22                         MR. NOBILE:  Can I glance at it
23               quickly?
24                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Certainly.
25                         MR. NOBILE:  Because I know what's in

17
1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2               it, but I actually haven't, I couldn't answer in
3               good conscience.
4                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.
5                         MS. SHENKMAN:  Is there some--what?
6                         MR. NOBILE:  Okay, yes, I have.
7                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  We need to go
8               off the record a moment.
9                         [OFF THE RECORD, Discussion with

10               Respondent, 2:13 p.m.]
11                         [ON THE RECORD, Discussion with Repo,
12               2:31 p.m.]
13                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay, we're back
14               on the record.  Okay, there was a little concern
15               about some language which has been straightened
16               out so, Mr. Nobile, we're going to take it from
17               the top, okay?
18                         Let me ask you these questions again.
19               Now, have you carefully read the post-charge
20               stipulation of settlement which is five pages?
21                         MR. NOBILE:  Yes.
22                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  And do you
23               understand all the provisions of the
24               stipulation?
25                         MR. NOBILE:  Yes.
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1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  And has your
3               attorney explained all the provisions of this
4               stipulation to you?
5                         MR. NOBILE:  Yes.
6                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  And at this time
7               do you have questions concerning any provision
8               in the stipulation?
9                         MR. NOBILE:  No.

10                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  And do you
11               understand that you have the right to refuse to
12               settle this case, in other words, that you have
13               the right to go forward with your tenure
14               hearing?
15                         MR. NOBILE:  I do?
16                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  You do.
17                         MR. NOBILE:  Yes, I understand.
18                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  You do
19               understand that?
20                         MR. NOBILE:  Yes.
21                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay, good.  Do
22               you understand that you have the right to
23               require the Department of Education to prove
24               these charges and that this right is guaranteed
25               to you under the education law?
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1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2                         MR. NOBILE:  Would you repeat that?
3                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sure.  Do you
4               understand that you have the right to require
5               the Department of Education to prove these
6               charges and that this right is guaranteed to you
7               under the education law?
8                         MR. NOBILE:  Oh, sure.
9                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Are you aware

10               that if you decide not to settle the case, that
11               NYSED would provide you with counsel at your
12               tenure hearing free of charge?
13                         MR. NOBILE:  Yes.
14                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  And do
15               you understand that by entering into this
16               stipulation of settlement, that you're waiving
17               your right to a hearing and that this settlement
18               agreement is binding and irrevocable?
19                         MR. NOBILE:  Yes.
20                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Now in the
21               presence of Ms. Shenkman, Mr. Callagy, and
22               myself, do you freely waive your rights to a
23               hearing and do you enter into this stipulation
24               of settlement of your own free will, without any
25               coercion or duress?

20
1             PHILIP NOBILE - 10/07/2016
2                         MR. NOBILE:  Yes.
3                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Very well, then.
4               Good luck to you, Mr. Nobile.  Thank you.  Is
5               there any other business?
6                         MS. SHENKMAN:  No.
7                         MR. CALLAGY:  Other than just
8               explaining to Mr. Nobile what will happen with
9               this document after he signs it.

10                         MR. NOBILE:  It'll be framed, I
11               presumed, right?
12                         MS. SHENKMAN:  Sure, should we go off
13               the record?
14                         THE HEARING OFFICER:  Sure, we can go
15               off the record for that.
16                          (The hearing adjourned at 02:50 p.m.)
17                 

CERTIFICATE OF ACCURACY
21
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typewritten transcript of proceedings in the matter of New
York City Department of Education v. Philip Nobile, File
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